
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3673 if you need it in large print, audio 
or another format.

Agenda

Civic Centre, 
Arnot Hill Park, 

Arnold,
Nottinghamshire, 

NG5 6LU

Environment and Licensing 
Committee

Date: Tuesday 6 November 2018

Time: 4.15 pm

Place: Council Chamber

For any further information please contact: 

Lorna Mellors

Democratic Services Officer

0115 901 3673

Public Document Pack



Environment and Licensing Committee
Membership

Chair Councillor Marje Paling

Vice-Chair Councillor Nicki Brooks

Councillor Bruce Andrews
Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Tammy Bisset
Councillor Roxanne Ellis
Councillor Carol Pepper
Councillor Alex Scroggie
Councillor Paul Stirland
Councillor John Truscott
Councillor Paul Wilkinson



AGENDA Page

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.

2  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 2 
October 2018.

5 - 7

3  Declaration of Interests.

4  The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) 
(England) Regulations 2018

9 - 15

Report of Service Manager, Public Protection

5  Any other item which the Chair considers urgent.

6  Exclusion of the Press and Public.

To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

7  Change of Circumstances of Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Drivers Licence - WS

17 - 25

Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing

8  Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Drivers Licence - MG

27 - 34

Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing

9  Application for a joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - 
AI

35 - 37

Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES
ENVIRONMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 2 October 2018

Councillor Marje Paling (Chair)

Present: Councillor Nicki Brooks
Councillor Bruce Andrews
Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Roxanne Ellis
Councillor Carol Pepper

Councillor Alex Scroggie
Councillor Paul Stirland
Councillor Paul Wilkinson
Councillor Gary Gregory

Absent: Councillor Tammy Bisset and Councillor John 
Truscott

Officers in Attendance: C Allcock, A Dubberley and P Gibbs

42   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS. 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bisset and 
Truscott. Councillor Gregory attended as substitute.

43   TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 4 AND 11 SEPTEMBER 2018. 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meetings, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record.

44   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

None.

45   ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT. 

None.

46   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC. 

RESOLVED:

That, the Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the ensuing reports on the grounds that the report involves the likely 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

47   APPLICATION FOR A ONE YEAR JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE / 
PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE (MIK) 

Consideration was given to a report by Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, 
regarding an application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence for MIK.

MIK attended the meeting and addressed the Committee.

In making its decision, the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines. On the basis of what it heard, the Committee was 
satisfied on balance that no exceptional circumstances existed which 
warranted departure from policy.

RESOLVED:

To approve MIK’s application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s licence for 1 year along with a clear warning that further reports 
of poor conduct would be taken seriously and lead to another 
appearance before the Committee.

48   APPLICATION FOR A ONE YEAR JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE / 
PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE (MF) 

Consideration was given to a report by Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, 
regarding an application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence for MF.

MF attended the meeting with his wife and addressed the Committee.

In making its decision, the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines. On the basis of what it heard, the Committee was 
satisfied on balance that no exceptional circumstances existed which 
warranted departure from policy.

RESOLVED:

To approve MF’s application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s licence for a period of 6 months.

49   APPLICATION FOR A ONE YEAR JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE / 
PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE (RS) 

Consideration was given to a report by Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, 

Page 6



regarding an application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence for RS.

RS attended the meeting with her daughter and both addressed the 
Committee.

In making its decision, the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines. On the basis of what it heard, the Committee was 
satisfied on balance that no exceptional circumstances existed which 
warranted departure from policy.

RESOLVED:

To approve RS’s application for a Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s licence for 1 year.

50   CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCE OF JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE / 
PRIVATE HIRE LICENSE (MA) 

Consideration was given to a report by Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, 
regarding an application for a change of circumstances of Joint Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence for MA.

MA attended the meeting with his nephew and his nephew addressed 
the Committee.

In making its decision, the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines. On the basis of what it heard, the Committee was 
satisfied on balance that no exceptional circumstances existed which 
warranted departure from policy.

RESOLVED:

To revoke the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence held by 
MA giving MA 21 days to surrender the licence.

MA was advised of his right to appeal against the decision of the 
Committee.

The meeting finished at 6.10 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Environment and Licensing Committee

Subject: The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) 
(England) Regulations 2018

Date: 6 November 2018

Author: Service Manager, Public Protection

Wards Affected 

All wards

Purpose

To advise Members of the changes in animal welfare licensing legislation 
following the implementation of The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals ) (England) Regulations 2018;

To advise Members of the changes in the procedures for the grant and 
administration of licences relating to the licensable activities;
 
To approve the proposed fees for the processing and enforcement of licences 
issued by the Council under The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving 
Animals) (England) Regulations 2018.

Recommendation:

That Members:

 Note the contents of the report and the procedural changes being 
made by the Council to administer the new animal activities licensing 
regime.

 Approve the fees attached at Appendix 1 for the new animal 
licensing process.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 Delegate authority to the Director of Health and Community 
Wellbeing to exercise all functions under The Animal Welfare 
(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 
2018.

Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Council is responsible for the regulation and licensing of a number 
of animal related businesses and the keeping of specified dangerous 
animals by individuals. Under the current licensing regime the Council is 
responsible for issuing the following licence types. 

 Animal boarding establishments
 Dog breeding establishments
 Pet shops
 Riding establishments
 Zoo and Dangerous Wild Animals licences

Nottingham County Council was until the 1st October 2018 responsible 
for the licensing of performing animals.

There are numerous pieces of legislation which regulate the licences 
specified above. However, adoption of conditions and implementation of 
the process has historically been left to the individual licensing 
authorities leading to multiple different approaches being taken. 

Under the current licensing regime all types of licences mentioned in 
paragraph 1.1 are standalone licences. A business offering two or more 
of the licensable activities would have to apply for multiple licences with 
additional expenditure incurred. 

Changes in legislation

The Animal Welfare Act 2006 includes provisions for the Secretary of 
State to create a national set of regulations in relation to the licensing of 
animal activities.  In April 2018 the Government passed the Animal 
Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 
Regulations 2018 (‘the Regulations’). The Regulations came into force 
on 1 October 2018 when they amalgamated, and replaced, a number of 
pieces of legislation that governed the licensing of animals.  The 
licensable activities now covered are:

Page 10



 Breeding Dogs
 Hiring out horses
 Keep or Training Animals for exhibition (previously carried out by 

the County)
 Providing Boarding for Cats
 Providing boarding in kennels for Dogs
 Providing day care for Dogs (not previously licensable)
 Providing home boarding for Dogs
 Selling animals as pets

1.5

1.6

The new regulations have amended the previous licensing regime in a 
number of ways but the key changes are:-

 A premise carrying out more than one of the licensable activities 
can now have a single licence covering a number of

           licensable activities (similar to premises licences under the
Licensing Act 2003). Each licensable activity will be assessed
separately and the premise will be given an overall rating by
combining the scores for each activity. 

 The change of licensing authority from County to District for
            the consideration of licences pertaining to performing
            animals. This is now covered by keeping or training animals for
            exhibition. 

 That a licence can last for 1 – 3 years depending upon a risk
            assessment produced in line with Secretary of State

        guidance.

 There are now prescribed sets of mandatory and activity specific 
conditions included within the regulations. This is to ensure that 
the same conditions apply to all premises across the country.  

Any existing licences granted before the 1 October 2018 will continue 
until their expiry date. The first renewals after 1 October 2018 will be 
treated as a new application under the new regime. After this first 
application all licences will be renewed under the new regulations.

Inspection

1.7 Prior to the grant of a new licence and the renewal of an existing licence 
a premise inspection is to be carried out. Historically these inspections 
have been carried out by Environmental Health Officers and a Council 
appointed vet. The new Regulations require a ‘qualified inspector’ to 

Page 11



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

carry out these inspections. A qualified inspector must hold a level 3 
certificate granted by an approved training provider relating to inspection 
and licensing of animal activity businesses. Transitional provisions are in 
place to enable any person who can show evidence of at least one 
years’ experience in licensing and inspecting animal activities to 
continue to carry out investigations until October 2021. Current 
Environmental Health Officers have sufficient experience to continue to 
carry out inspections.   

In addition to the qualification requirements mentioned at paragraph 1.7, 
in the case of the grant of a dog breeding licence and at the grant and 
renewal of horse riding establishment licences the inspector must still be 
accompanied by a veterinary surgeon. 

As part of the inspection process the Council will determine the
level of risk posed by the activities on site using the DEFRA
guidance, this process will establish whether a business is low risk or 
higher risk. The risk assessment will determine the length of time
that a licence will last for, which can be between 1 and 3 years, and give 
the business a star rating between 1 and 5 stars. (With the exception of 
a ‘Keeping and Training Animals for Exhibition’ licence which will last for 
3 years as default). The star rating will be included on the licence which 
is to be displayed in the premises. 

Having undertaken an inspection of a premises the Council must attach 
the general conditions and the relevant activity specific conditions before 
granting the licence.

If a licence holder is not happy with the star rating they receive they 
have the ability to appeal against their risk assessment score, this 
appeal will be determined by the Council. The procedural guidance 
provided to local authorities states that these appeals should be dealt 
with at officer level and if the licence holder is still not satisfied as to the 
outcome of the appeal they can further appeal by way of judicial review. 

1.12 A licence holder can also request a re-score visit at any time, however, 
the local authority can charge for this rescore visit, by charging the 
reasonable costs that they incur in doing so.

1.13 When considering the conditions that are placed on a licence the
Regulations state that the licensing authority may: suspend, vary or 
revoke a licence if they are satisfied that –

a) The licence conditions are not being complied with
b) There has been a breach of the Regulations

Page 12



c) Information provided by the applicant was false or misleading
d) It is necessary to protect the welfare of an animal

1.14

1.15

Where the authority chooses to vary, suspend or revoke a licence, the 
licence holder has 7 working days, from the date the Council issues the 
decision, in which they can make written representations to the 
authority. This must be considered within 7 working days of receiving 
the representation accordance with Regulation 15. If the licence holder 
is not satisfied as to the outcome of such an appeal they can further 
appeal to the First-tier Tribunal within 28 days of the decision. 

Fees

The Regulations allow licensing authorities to charge a reasonable fee 
to cover the cost of granting and administering licences. Under 
Regulation 13 the Council can charge a fee for the consideration of an 
application for the grant, renewal, or variation of a licence. This fee can 
also include enforcement, compliance and inspection costs.

It is not lawful for the Council to make a profit from its licensing
functions, and the proposed fees have to be set, based on the
guidance set out in Regulation 13, and a reasonable estimate of the 
costs of undertaking this.

The fees are split into two parts. An ‘application fee’ payable at the time 
of submitting an application to cover the Councils costs in considering 
and determining the licence, and a ‘grant fee’ payable on the grant of a 
licence to cover ongoing costs incurred by the Council for enforcement 
and compliance. The proposed fees are set out in Appendix 1. 

Proposal

2.1 It is proposed;
 

 That Members note the implications of the Regulations and the 
procedural changes being made by the Council to administer the 
new licensing regime.

 That Members approve the Animal Activity Licensing fees 
attached at Appendix 1.

 That Members delegate authority to the Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing to exercise all functions under The Animal 
Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 
Regulations 2018. 

Page 13



Financial Implications

4.1 The proposed fees and charges are designed to ensure that the service 
operates on a full cost recovery basis.

Appendices

5.1 Appendix 1 – The proposed fees for the new animal licensing 
application process.

Reasons for Recommendations

This ensures that the Authority is fully compliant with The Animal Welfare 
(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018

To set the fees for the grant and administration of a licence made under to 
exercise all functions under the Regulations. 

To enable the licensing process to be dealt with at officer level which enables 
decisions to be made within the short timeframes specified within the regulations 
and reduces the burden on Environment and Licensing Committee.

Page 14



Appendix 1

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 
Regulations 2018

Proposed fees from 7 November 2018 until 31 March 2019

All animal activity 
licences 

Application fee Grant of licence 
fee

Total fee

Initial application £158 £128 £286*

Renewal application 
(must be received 
before expiry of 
current licence)

£128 £98 £226**

Rescore fee N/A N/A £180

Licence variation fee N/A N/A £40

*For dog breeding and horse riding establishments there will be an addition fee to 
cover the costs of the vet’s fees for the inspection.

**For horse riding establishments there will be an additional fee to cover the costs of 
the vet’s fees for inspection

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2018.
	4 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018
	Appendix 1

	7 Change of Circumstances of Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - WS
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	8 Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - MG
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	9 Application for a joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - AI

